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STATE OF MAINE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
RFA SUBMITTED QUESTIONS & ANSWERS SUMMARY
	RFA NUMBER AND TITLE:
	202204066 - Health Equity Infrastructure & Capacity Building Grant Funding Opportunity

for Community Based Organizations

	RFA ISSUED BY:
	Department of Health and Human Services, 
Maine Center for Disease Control and Prevention

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS DUE DATE:
	May 25, 2022, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time

	QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ISSUED:
	June 1, 2022

	APPLICATION SUBMISSION PERIOD: 
	June 24, 2022, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time

	APPLICATION DUE TO:
	Proposals@maine.gov


Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answer.
	1
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	We are a new organization and have been providing psychosocial support and spiritual care for people suffering with isolation as a result of COVID. We have provided support as a part of the community support program. Our support has been remote. Our constituency has been predominantly socioeconomically challenged, much of which has been the homeless. We have two significant projects we would like to do with this money. The first is to create a spiritual care program for the Bangor Homeless Shelter and Penobscot Public Health. We have been in conversation with them both and they are open and excited to fold us into their care teams if funding is available to care for people who are harder hit by the pandemic. We are hoping to also create a focus on the recovery community there and create resources that help the recovery communities that are replicable in other parts of the state.
The other project would be to create a spiritual care training program in the Lewiston/Auburn area that would interpret traditional clinical pastoral training into and for the local community so that there is a path to a recognizable credential that non-mainstream clergy (i.e. Imams and female leaders in the Muslim community) can participate in. This also might involve remote training of Muslim and other new Mainer community clergy and lay leaders across the state. It would give them clinical language and training that would be recognizable in hospitals, hospices and other institutions and thus could provide pathways for employment. It would give them language to also talk back to the system and communicate needs that may also be unrepresented through our traditional clinical speak. 

These are early in the works. We are only 9 months old and have as a goal to train our young board, especially in racial equity and then grow the board in diversity.
Do these seem to meet the spirit of the grant? Or are these grants specifically for ECBOs? It looks like the scoring is directed toward ethnic and minority-based organizations. 

	
	Answer

	
	The purpose of the grant is “to provide one-time funding to assist [Community-Based Organizations] located in Maine, who work to address racial/ethnic COVID-19 disparities through COVID-19 response efforts and/or social determinants of health in communities that experience COVID-19 disparities and have significant infrastructure development needs and the means to obtain long-term success and sustainability in their efforts.”
Without seeing a full proposal, the Department is unable to comment on how competitive a potential application would be. Ethnic Community Based Organizations (ECBOs) are not the only type of organization that would meet the highest scoring criteria for Community of Focus and Leadership.


	2
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	It looks like the CDC grant, Health Equity Infrastructure & Capacity Building Grant Funding Opportunity for Community Based Organizations, is just for CBO’s, correct? A Division within a hospital setting wouldn’t qualify?

	
	Answer

	
	For the purposes of this RFA, the Department is using the following definition of Community-Based Organization:

A community-based organization is one that is driven by and accountable to the community and/or population that it serves. The organization has a physical presence in the community it serves and has clear processes to include community perspectives in determining the priority issues it addresses and the solutions pursued.
In addition to being a Community-Based Organization, applicants must be a CBO working to directly address (1) racial/ethnic COVID-19 disparities in their community and/or (2) social determinants of health in communities that experience COVID-19 disparities.
The type of entity is less important than the accountability to the community and the focus on racial/ethnic disparities.


	3
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	I had a quick question that is unique to our situation: We are a small registered and operating 501 c 3 non-profit (of about 5 staff/volunteers) that does not currently have a certificate of insurance yet due to competing costs and challenges. We don't have any funding and have been attempting to apply for various grants without much success. 
a. Will we be still eligible to apply for this grant? 
b. If yes, could we include in general expenses, purchasing a liability insurance?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Yes, an Applicant who does not currently have insurance must provide a description of the insurance that would be purchase if awarded funding. All Applicants awarded funding must provide evidence of valid insurance prior to a contract being executed by the Department.

b. Yes.


	4
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	I have a question about capacity building in reference to staff wellness. 
Would the cost of a health and dental insurance plan for organizational staff be covered—even for staff not working under this grant?  
Another way to phrase this:  If an organization seeks to increase organizational staff capacity and wellness by offering ALL employees health and dental insurance benefits, whether their positions are funded by this grant or not, would this be allowable?  It is about increasing organizational capacity rather than assigning individual fringe benefits.

	
	Answer

	
	2 CFR § 200.431 sets requirements for charging fringe benefits to Federal awards and subawards. Depending on your organization’s established written policies, it may be possible to charge these costs for all employees to this award, but the Department isn’t able to confirm the appropriate way to do this until contract negotiations. This decision may also depend on whether the organization has other Federal awards or sub-awards and whether it is treating these costs consistently across all Federal awards and sub-awards. 


	5
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	Will this be a cost settled agreement?

	
	Answer

	
	The payment method will be determined based on the approved Application and resulting contract. The Department may utilize either a cost settled or non-cost settled method.


	6
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	a. If an organization is applying as a collaborative for technical assistance to a membership and is using consultants, do we have to know exactly who and how much each will cost for the original budget? Or are we able to set a portion of the budget for “consultants” and describe what they would be doing, but not exactly who and how much each?
b. If you do want more detail, could we say: “We will be working with XXX, YYY, and ZZZ and will use each consultant as appropriate over the grant period, for a total of $DD,DDD.00.”?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Applicants do not need to know the specific consultants to determine a budget. Applicants must provide as much information as possible about how costs were estimated by describing what each proposed consultant would do and how those costs are estimated.
b. Applicants must focus on the work that consultant XXX, YYY, and ZZZ will be doing, and share the estimated cost for each type of work.


	7
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	In the lead up to this funding opportunity, much was said about 50% of the funds needing to be directed to BIPOC communities and 50% to rural communities. This guidance is less specific, so I want to ensure that the 50/50 breakdown is still in play, and, assuming so, that rural white populations’ health equity is also included in the opportunity in addition to rural BIPOC communities.

	
	Answer

	
	The purpose of this funding opportunity is “to provide one-time funding to assist [Community-Based Organizations] located in Maine, who work to address racial/ethnic COVID-19 disparities through COVID-19 response efforts and/or social determinants of health in communities that experience COVID-19 disparities and have significant infrastructure development needs and the means to obtain long-term success and sustainability in their efforts.”

This funding opportunity is specific to the purpose listed above. It is only one (1) of thirteen (13) initiatives that are part of the U.S. CDC COVID-19 Disparities Grant and each initiative is expected to have its own unique contracting/funding process.


	8
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	The City of Portland Minority Health Program (MHP) is not a CBOs, but we have been advancing health equity in communities at higher risk of COVID-19. Since the beginning of the pandemic our team of CHOWs have been providing outreach, education, and assistance to patients with registration for vaccination against COVID-19, and provision of cultural brokering and interpret services.  We would like to apply for this grant funding opportunity. Below please find our questions:
a. Are municipal health departments eligible to apply for this funding?
b. If municipal health departments are eligible to apply, does the provision listed in section D regarding the ability to be on multiple applications apply to them?
c. Should the “organization’s total annual expenditures” number be figured on the entire parent organization within which the program is located, or should it be figured based on the programmatic budget of an individual program aimed at serving minority communities housed within an organization?

d. Is the maximum funding amount an annual amount or the total amount for the duration of the contract?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Only Community-Based Organizations are eligible to apply for this funding opportunity.  The Department does not consider Municipalities to be a Community-Based Organization.
b. N/A

c. The purpose of this funding is to support the infrastructure of organizations, so the budget should be the organization level, not a program within the organization. The exception to this is for fiscal sponsored organizations, where the budget should be the individual organization applying (through a fiscal sponsor), not the fiscal sponsor itself.
d. The maximum funding amount is for the entire award period (approximately two years), not per year.


Q&A Summary continues next page

	9
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	Healthy Living for ME is a statewide network made up of community-based organizations, health systems, and volunteers. We serve Mainers statewide with most of our support currently reaching populations of Middle Eastern Americans and individuals who identify as White American. There have been multiple third-party interpretations of who would be included in BIPOC; many include Latino, Hispanic, and Middle Eastern as part of their definition. Does this fall within your definition as well? 

	
	Answer

	
	Latino, Latinx, Hispanic, and Middle Eastern Communities are included in the Department’s definition of BIPOC communities.


	10
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	OPHE initiatives aim to support three major needs, including “invest resources directly in communities most severely impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic and other serious threats to public health” (page 3); should our focus be on the COVID-19 pandemic or can it also include the social determinants of health that further creates health disparities?  

	
	Answer

	
	The focus of this funding opportunity is building community-based organization infrastructure. Organizations are not expected to create new programming as a result of this opportunity and can focus capacity building activities on what best meets their needs.


	11
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	CBO Collaborative scoring rubric for Community of Focus and Leadership (page 13); scoring for topics Collaborative Leadership Composition and Collaborative Member Composition mention that they must reflect the community served. Could you define “community served”? 

	
	Answer

	
	For the purpose of the scoring rubric for collaborative applications, “community served” means the collection of communities served by the members of the collaborative.


	12
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	Is the lack of access or availability of resources to address the social determinants of health considered a root cause of COVID-19 related health disparities? 

	
	Answer

	
	This could be considered a root cause, however, the root causes in the application should be specific to each community that the Applicant is working with.


	13
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	a. Is the provided budget template also considered the budget narrative? 
b. Or is there another written narrative required? 
c. If the template can act as the budget narrative, can a field be added for expense justifications? 

	
	Answer

	
	a. No.

b. The Budget Narrative must be provided within Part III of the application below the Budget Narrative Instructions. 

c. N/A.


	14
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Activities and Requirements Section A Page 7
	Is providing transportation services to community members an allowable use of funds for capacity-building activities under this grant?

	
	Answer

	
	The purpose of this funding opportunity is “to provide one-time funding to assist [Community-Based Organizations] located in Maine, who work to address racial/ethnic COVID-19 disparities through COVID-19 response efforts and/or social determinants of health in communities that experience COVID-19 disparities and have significant infrastructure development needs and the means to obtain long-term success and sustainability in their efforts.”
Providing transportation services may be allowable if it is related to the CBO’s capacity building plan, reduces COVID-19 disparities in the community served, and/or as a one-time pilot initiative which helps to build the CBO’s capacity. 


	15
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Activities and Requirements
Section A Page 7
	Can providers purchase food for community members under this grant?

	
	Answer

	
	The purpose of this funding opportunity is “to provide one-time funding to assist [Community-Based Organizations] located in Maine, who work to address racial/ethnic COVID-19 disparities through COVID-19 response efforts and/or social determinants of health in communities that experience COVID-19 disparities, and have significant infrastructure development needs and the means to obtain long-term success and sustainability in their efforts.”
Purchasing food for community members may be allowable if it is related to the CBO’s capacity building plan, reduces COVID-19 disparities in the community served, and/or as a one-time pilot initiative which helps to build the CBO’s capacity.  Additional approval will be required for food purchases under any award issued under this RFA process.


	16
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Activities and Requirements
Section A Page 7
	Can providers purchase food for community food distribution under this grant?

	
	Answer

	
	The purpose of this funding opportunity is “to provide one-time funding to assist [Community-Based Organizations] located in Maine, who work to address racial/ethnic COVID-19 disparities through COVID-19 response efforts and/or social determinants of health in communities that experience COVID-19 disparities and have significant infrastructure development needs and the means to obtain long-term success and sustainability in their efforts.”
Purchasing food for community food distribution may be allowable if it is related to the CBO’s capacity building plan, reduces COVID-19 disparities in the community served, and/or as a one-time pilot initiative which helps to build the CBO’s capacity. Additional approval may be required for food purchases under any award issued under this RFA process.


	17
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Activities and Requirements
Section A Page 7
	Stable, long-term housing is a major social determinant of health and adverse COVID-19 outcomes. Community members we work with have communicated that a lack of knowledge regarding the home-buying process is a barrier to accessing stable, long-term housing (especially in the current rental market). Additionally, community members have experienced structural racism and implicit bias from banks and other institutions when trying to buy a home for the first time (e.g., banks are resistant to approving loans for individuals/families who have “nontraditional” employment or family arrangements). Would DHHS consider education and outreach activities regarding the first-time home-buying process allowable activities and use of funds under this grant?

	
	Answer

	
	The purpose of this funding opportunity is “to provide one-time funding to assist [Community-Based Organizations] located in Maine, who work to address racial/ethnic COVID-19 disparities through COVID-19 response efforts and/or social determinants of health in communities that experience COVID-19 disparities and have significant infrastructure development needs and the means to obtain long-term success and sustainability in their efforts.”
Education and outreach activities about first time-home buying may be allowable if it is related to the CBO’s capacity building plan, reduces COVID-19 disparities in the community served, and/or as a one-time pilot initiative which helps to build the CBO’s capacity. 


	18
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Application Evaluation and Selection Section B 
Page 12
	Could you clarify what DHHS considers clear, achievable goals as stated in the Scoring Rubric for Capacity Building Vision?

	
	Answer

	
	The Applicant’s Capacity Building Vision must provide concise details of the Capacity Plan Tasks and Intended Outcomes which are relative to and within the reach of the proposed project.


	19
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Application Evaluation and Selection Section B Page 12
	The Scoring Rubric for Capacity Building Plan details that proposed tasks should be strategic. Could you elaborate on how DHHS defines “strategic”?

	
	Answer

	
	Strategic means “a clear link is visible to Applicant’s vision for addressing COVID-19 disparities.”
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